
 
Hobbs City Commission 

Regular Meeting 
City Hall, City Commission Chamber 

200 E. Broadway, 1st Floor Annex, Hobbs, New Mexico 
 

Monday, September 15, 2025 - 6:00 PM  
 

 Sam D. Cobb, Mayor  
R. Finn Smith 

Commissioner - District 1 
Christopher R. Mills 

Commissioner - District 2 
Larron B. Fields 

Commissioner - District 3 
Joseph D. Calderón 

Commissioner - District 4 
Dwayne Penick 

Commissioner - District 5 
Don R. Gerth 

Commissioner - District 6 
 

 
AGENDA 

City Commission Meetings are 
Broadcast Live on KHBX FM 90.7 Radio and 

View Online at www.hobbsnm.org  
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 1. Minutes of the September 2, 2025, Regular Commission Meeting  (Jan 
Fletcher, City Clerk) 

 
PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS OF MERIT 

 2. Proclamation Proclaiming September 16, 2025, as "NATIONAL IT 
PROFESSIONALS DAY" in the City of Hobbs  (Joseph D. Calderón, Mayor 
Pro Tem) 

 3. Proclamation Proclaiming September 26, 2025, as "HUMAN RESOURCES 
DAY" in the City of Hobbs  (Joseph D. Calderón, Mayor Pro Tem) 

https://www.hobbsnm.org/


 4. Recognition of City Employees - Milestone Service Awards for the Month of 
September, 2025  (Manny Gomez, City Manager) 

•   5 years - Luis Espinoza, Hobbs Police Department 
•   5 years - Meghan Van Ham, Hobbs Police Department 
• 10 years - Carri Downing, Hobbs Fire Department 
• 10 years - David Torres, Hobbs Police Department 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  (Citizens who wish to speak must sign the Public Comment 
Registration Form located in the Commission Chamber prior to the beginning of the 
meeting.) 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  (The consent agenda is approved by a single motion. Any 
member of the Commission may request an item to be transferred to the regular 
agenda from the consent agenda without discussion or vote.) 

 5. Resolution No. 7674  - Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Grant Agreement 
Amendment No. 2 with the State of New Mexico Department of Transportation 
for CN: LP20037  (Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager) 

 
DISCUSSION 

 
ACTION ITEMS  (Ordinances, Resolutions, Public Hearings) 

 6. PUBLIC HEARING:  Resolution No. 7675 - Regarding the Transfer of Location 
of Restaurant "A" Liquor License No. RES-000180 Owned by Kui Liu, LLC, 
d/b/a Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar from 915 East Bender Blvd. to 
1015 Joe Harvey Blvd. in Hobbs, New Mexico  (Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, 
Deputy City Attorney) 

 7. Resolution No. 7676 - Authorizing the City of Hobbs to Submit a Grant 
Application to the State of New Mexico, Department of Transportation, for the 
Hobbs Express Public Transportation Program for FY 26-27 Under Section 
5311 of the Federal Transit Act  (Jan Fletcher, City Clerk) 

 8. Consideration of Award of Bid 1621-25; Rehabilitation of the 600,000-Gallon 
Concrete Water Storage Tank Located at the HIAP Booster Pump Station 
(BPS)  (Tim Woomer, Utilities Director) 

 9. Consideration of Award of Bid 1622-25; Rehabilitation of the 2,000,000-Gallon 
Concrete Water Storage Tank Located at the Jefferson Booster Pump Station 
(BPS)  (Tim Woomer, Utilities Director) 



 10. Resolution No. 7677 - Authorizing the Expenditure of Funds to be Used for the 
Purchase of Playground Equipment and Improvements to Taylor Elementary 
School Park  (Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney) 

 11. Resolution No. 7678 - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Hobbs 
Municipal Schools, Hobbs Police Department and Lea County Sheriff's Office 
 (August Fons, Police Chief) 

 12. FINAL ADOPTION:  Ordinance No. 1164 - Authorizing the Sale and 
Conveyance of Certain City-Owned Land Located within the Hobbs Industrial 
Airpark to Stag Amazon, LLC  (Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager) 

 
COMMENTS BY CITY COMMISSIONERS, CITY MANAGER 

 13. Next Meeting Dates: 
 
City Commission Regular Meetings 

• Monday, October 6, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
• Monday, Ocober 20, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

  

If you are an individual with a disability who needs a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the above 
meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (575) 397-9200 at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be 
provided in various accessible formats. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office if a summary or 
other type of accessible format is needed.  
 



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Minutes of the September 2, 2025, Regular Commission Meeting  
 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
City Clerk 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/5/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Jan Fletcher, City Clerk  

 
Summary: 
 
Minutes of the regular Commission meeting held on September 2, 2025.

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
N/A

 
Attachments:  

September 2, 2025 - Minutes 
  

Recommendation: 
 
Motion to approve the minutes.

 
Approved By: 
 
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 09/08/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/08/2025 
 



Minutes of the regular meeting of the Hobbs City Commission held on Monday, 
September 2, 2025, in the City Commission Chamber, 200 East Broadway, 1st Floor 
Annex, Hobbs, New Mexico. This meeting was also broadcast via Livestream on the 
City’s website at www.hobbsnm.org.  
    
Call to Order and Roll Call 
    
Mayor Cobb called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone to the 
meeting. The City Clerk called the roll and the following answered present: 
 
   Mayor Sam D. Cobb  
   Commissioner R. Finn Smith  
   Commissioner Chris Mills (arrived at 6:03 p.m.) 
   Commissioner Larron B. Fields  

Commissioner Joseph Calderón 
Commissioner Dwayne Penick - absent  

   Commissioner Don Gerth  
    
Also present:  Manny Gomez, City Manager 

Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager 
   Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 

Mark Doporto, Fire Chief 
Ryan Herrera, Deputy Fire Chief 
Adam Marinovich, Deputy Fire Chief 
Shawn Williams, Fire Marshal 
Hayden Able, Fire Inspector 
Tony Alarcon, Fire Inspector 
August Fons, Police Chief 
Marina Barrientes, Police Captain 

   Evelyn Nunez, Event Coordinator 
Shannon Arguello, Municipal Court Administrator 
Bryan Wagner, Parks and Open Spaces Director 
Matt Hughes, Rockwind Superintendent 
Lou Maldonado, Parks Superintendent 
Shelia Baker, General Services Director 

   Nichole Lawless, Library Director 
   Tim Woomer, Utilities Director 
    Deborah Corral, Assistant Finance Director 
   Nicholas Goulet, Human Resources Director 
   Tracy South, Assistant Human Resources Director 
   Selena Estrada, Risk Management 
   Christa Belyeu, I.T. Director 
   Julie Nymeyer, Executive Assistant 
   Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 
   Rose Galavez, Deputy City Clerk  
   Alyxandra Salas, Assistant Deputy City Clerk    
   6 citizens 
 
 

http://www.hobbsnm.org/


City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 2                                                                 
 
  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Commissioner Fields delivered the invocation and Commissioner Gerth led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Commissioner Calderón moved the minutes of the regular meeting of August 25, 2025, 
be approved as written. Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and roll call vote 
was recorded as follows: Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, Calderón yes, Gerth yes, 
Cobb yes.  The motion carried.   
 
Proclamations and Awards of Merit 
 
Mayor Cobb proclaimed the month of September 2025 as "Hobbs Clean Up Month" in 
the City of Hobbs. This proclamation is part of the ongoing “Keep Hobbs Beautiful” 
initiative, which aims to promote a well-maintained community, strengthen civic pride, 
and encourage environmental stewardship. He emphasized that the City of Hobbs has 
grown into what it is today because of its strong sense of Hometown Pride. He 
encouraged all residents to participate in Clean Up Hobbs Month by picking up litter 
while walking through their neighborhoods or by joining local public cleanup events. 
He presented the proclamation to Ms. Evelyn Nunez, City of Hobbs Event Coordinator.  
 
Ms. Evelyn Nunez thanked Mayor Cobb for the proclamation and shared details about 
the upcoming community clean-up events planned for September. She announced 
that there will be three community clean-ups this month: 
 

1. Saturday, September 6, 2025 – at the intersection of Clinton and Eastern 
2. Saturday, September 13, 2025 – at Humble Park 
3. Saturday, September 20, 2025 – in honor of National Clean Up Day, meeting 

at City Park 
 
All clean-ups will begin at 9:00 a.m., and supplies will be provided for all participants. 
Ms. Nunez expressed her gratitude to the City of Hobbs and the New Mexico Clean 
and Beautiful Grant for enabling her to pursue a cause she is deeply passionate about. 
She highlighted how the grant has not only provided resources for supplies and youth 
education, but also fostered collaboration with various city departments, dedicated 
residents, and local businesses that genuinely care about the community. She 
concluded by sharing her hope that the month of September will serve as an 
opportunity for the entire community to come together and celebrate Hobbs by keeping 
it clean and beautiful. 
 
Public Comments 
 
None. 



City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 3                                                                 
 
  
Consent Agenda 
 
Mayor Cobb explained the process for the consent agenda which is reserved for items 
which are routine when the agenda is lengthy.  He stated any member of the 
Commission may request an item to be transferred to the regular agenda from the 
consent agenda without discussion or vote. 
   
Commissioner Calderón moved for approval of the following Consent Agenda item(s): 
 
Resolution No. 7669 - Authorizing a Contribution of $25,000.00 for FY 2025-2026 to 
the Eddy-Lea Energy Alliance LLC  
 
Resolution No. 7670 - Authorizing the City of Hobbs to Apply for $250,000.00 from 
the 2026 New Mexico Regional Recreation Centers and Quality of Life Grant Funding 
for the Heizer Park Design and Master Plan  
 
Resolution No. 7671 - Authorizing the City of Hobbs to Apply for $750,000.00 in 
Funding from the 2026 New Mexico Regional Recreation Centers and Quality of Life 
Grant for the Downtown Shipp Street Venue  
 
Commissioner Fields seconded the motion and roll call vote was recorded as follows:  
Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, Calderón, Gerth yes, Cobb yes.  The motion carried.   
Copies of the resolutions and supporting documentation are attached and made a 
part of these minutes. 
 
Discussion 
 
None.  
 
Action Items 
 
Consideration of Approval of HGAC Contract EE11-24 with MES for the Purchase of 
85 Vision C5 Facepieces and 73 E-Z Flo C5 Quick Connect Hoses  
 
Mr. Mark Doporto, Fire Chief, stated the Hobbs Fire Department is requesting 
approval to purchase 85 Vision C5 Facepieces and 73 E-Z Flo C5 Quick-Connect 
Regulators from Municipal Emergency Services utilizing the HGAC cooperative 
purchasing contract. Chief Doporto noted the department’s current facepieces and 
regulators were purchased 12 years ago, have performed reliably, and have served 
their intended purpose. However, many of these units are now out of warranty and in 
poor condition. The Vision C5 Facepieces are critical pieces of safety equipment, 
used by firefighters when entering Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health (IDLH) 
environments, providing clean, breathable air during high-risk operations. The 
purchase of the new facepieces and regulators will ensure that all breathing 
apparatuses meet current NFPA standards, improving safety and operational 



City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 4                                                                 
 
  
readiness for the department.  He stated the total cost of the purchase is $183,792.38, 
and funding has already been allocated in the Fire Protection Fund for this fiscal year 
specifically for this purpose. 
 
Mayor Cobb commented on the importance of effective communication during 
emergency responses. He noted that firefighters operating outside of a structure can 
communicate quickly and clearly with those inside the structure. If outside personnel 
observe any hazards or changes in conditions, they can immediately alert those 
inside to evacuate or act, potentially preventing injury or saving lives. 
 
Chief Doporto explained that the new facepieces come equipped with bone 
conduction headphones, an automated voice prompt, and an integrated volume 
switch. These advanced features allow personnel outside the structure to activate a 
button, triggering both visual and audible alerts for the firefighters inside. This system 
ensures that firefighters receive a clear, immediate signal when it is time to exit the 
structure. 
 
Mayor Cobb emphasized this is an important enhancement, noting the current masks 
used by the Hobbs Fire Department do not offer the same level of communication 
capability.  
 
Chief Doporto agreed, stating that the department’s current masks lack both the 
visual and audio alert capabilities featured in the new models. He added the existing 
equipment is outdated and no longer functioning at optimal performance, further 
reinforcing the need for this critical upgrade to ensure firefighter safety and 
operational effectiveness. 
 
There being no further discussion, Commissioner Mills moved to approve the HGAC 
Contract EE11-24 with MES for the Purchase of 85 Vision C5 Facepieces and 73 E-
Z Flo C5 Quick Connect Hoses as presented.  Commissioner Mills seconded the 
motion and roll call vote was recorded as follows:  Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, 
Calderón yes, Gerth yes, Cobb yes.  The motion carried.  A copy of the supporting 
documentation is attached. 
 
Resolution No. 7672 - Approving the Submission of the FY 2026 Fire Protection Grant 
Council Application  
 
Mr. Mark Doporto, Fire Chief, stated the City of Hobbs Fire Department is eligible to 
apply for the FY 26 Fire Protection Grant Council Grant. This competitive grant 
provides funding to a single applicant, with awards not exceeding the maximum 
amount designated for each specific category by the granting agency. The Hobbs 
Fire Department intends to use this opportunity to request $497,250.00 to fund the 
purchase of fire simulator training props. There is no local match is required for this 
grant. Chief Doporto outlined some of the key training props included in the request, 
such as a hazmat rollover tanker simulator, a flammable liquids and gas trainer, and 



City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 5                                                                 
 
  
an SUV vehicle fire simulator. He further explained the functionality of these 
simulators and their value in enhancing firefighter training. These advanced props will 
provide realistic, hands-on training scenarios, better preparing personnel to respond 
to a wide range of hazardous situations safely and effectively. 
 
There being no discussion, Commissioner Smith moved to approve Resolution No. 
7672 as presented.  Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and roll call vote was 
recorded as follows: Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, Calderón yes, Gerth yes, Cobb 
yes. The motion carried.  A copy of the resolution and supporting documentation are 
attached. 
 
Consideration of Approval of the Purchase of a Heavy Rescue/Hazardous Material 
Vehicle from Pierce Manufacturing, Inc., Utilizing NM GSA Contract # 10-00000-21-
00101AK2024  
 
Mr. Mark Doporto, Fire Chief, stated a State of New Mexico 2024 Legislative Capital 
Appropriation Project in the amount of $1,500,000.00 has been awarded to the City 
of Hobbs Fire Department to purchase and equip heavy rescue hazardous material 
vehicles. This project will address the need to replace two existing apparatus that are 
reaching the end of operation capability. This project allows the department to 
continue the high level of service expected and currently provided throughout the 
community. The Hobbs Fire Department wishes to purchase one Pierce Pumper Fire 
Apparatus in the amount of $923,373.00. The purchase will be made utilizing a New 
Mexico State Contract in order to expend the appropriated funds. This will leave 
$576,627.00 for the Hazmat vehicle that is needed in addition to the Hazmat Vehicle 
they currently have in fleet.  
 
In response to Mayor Cobb’s inquiry, Chief Doporto stated the apparatus will be ready 
by March of 2026.  
 
In response to Commissioner Smith’s inquiry regarding where the Oshkosh trucks 
can be serviced, Chief Doporto stated the department has entered into a contract with 
Siddons-Martin, a certified fire truck maintenance dealer. Siddons-Martin technicians 
have been servicing the trucks on-site at the department as needed for maintenance 
and repair work. As for the nearest facility where a truck could be delivered for service, 
he noted he does not have that information available at this time but will provide it in 
the near future. 
 
Mayor Cobb added as the department becomes better equipped and trained, all of its 
efforts contribute to improving the City's fire safety rating. A higher rating can lead to 
lower insurance premiums for everyone in the community. 
 
Chief Doporto stated the City currently holds an ISO rating of 2. He noted that factors 
such as equipment purchases, staffing levels, and training all contribute to this rating. 



City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 6                                                                 
 
  
He emphasized that the acquisition of both the pumper truck and the hazmat vehicle 
are critical components in maintaining and potentially improving the City’s ISO rating. 
 
There being no further discussion, Commissioner Fields moved to approve the 
purchase of a Heavy Rescue/Hazardous Material Vehicle from Pierce Manufacturing, 
Inc. as presented.  Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and roll call vote was 
recorded as follows:  Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, Calderón yes, Gerth yes, Cobb 
yes.  The motion carried.  A copy of the supporting documentation is attached. 
 
Resolution No. 7673 - Approving a Development Agreement with Stuard Homes LLC, 
Concerning the Development of Market Rate Single-Family Housing  
 
Mr. Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager, presented an overview of the history of 
affordable and market rate single-family housing developments in the City of Hobbs. 
He noted that nearly 2,752 housing units have been constructed since 2012 with 
nearly $31 million in the form of development agreements and funding commitments 
from the City of Hobbs. 
 
Mr. Randall stated Stuard Homes, LLC, has submitted a request for a Development 
Agreement related to a proposed single-family housing project within the city limits. 
The developer plans to build market rate single-family homes and is seeking 
$300,000.00 in infrastructure incentives and the request aligns with the City’s 
incentive policy. Mr. Randall also presented a map showing the proposed location of 
the development. 
 
There being no discussion, Commissioner Calderón moved to approve Resolution 
No. 7673 as presented.  Commissioner Mills seconded the motion and roll call vote 
was recorded as follows: Smith yes, Mills yes, Fields yes, Calderón yes, Gerth yes, 
Cobb yes. The motion carried.  A copy of the resolution and supporting 
documentation are attached. 
 
COMMENTS BY CITY COMMISSIONERS, CITY MANAGER 
 
Mr. Gomez expressed his gratitude to Ms. Evelyn Nunez for her dedication and 
passion in organizing the community clean-up events. He stated that three scheduled 
clean-up days offer a valuable opportunity for residents to make a meaningful 
difference in the community and to demonstrate pride in the City of Hobbs.  
 
Mr. Gomez also reminded the public about the upcoming Dog Daze event, hosted by 
the Recreation Department. The event will take place on Saturday, September 6, 
2025, from 1:00 to 3:00 p.m. at Del Norte Pool, immediately following the first 
community clean-up of the month. He encouraged residents to volunteer in the 
morning clean-up and then head to the pool to cool off and enjoy the fun at Dog Daze. 
 



City Commission Meeting  
September 2, 2025                           Page 7                                                                 
 
  
Commissioner Fields shared his positive experience at the recent Hobbs August 
Nites event held over the past weekend. He said he thoroughly enjoyed seeing the 
community come together, with residents having a great time and enjoying 
themselves in the City of Hobbs. He also took a moment to thank the Hobbs Fire 
Department for their continued hard work and dedication, especially in actively 
seeking and pursuing grant opportunities that support the department’s mission and 
enhance public safety. 
 
Mayor Cobb expressed his hope that everyone had a wonderful Labor Day weekend 
and extended his well wishes for safe travels to those who will be traveling in the 
upcoming weekend. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business or comments, Commissioner Calderón moved that 
the meeting adjourn.  Commissioner Gerth seconded the motion and the vote was 
recorded as follows:  Smith yes, Mills yes, Calderón yes, Fields yes, Gerth yes, Cobb 
yes.  The motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
      SAM COBB, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 







September Milestones 2025 
 

5 Years 
Luis Espinoza   Police Service Aide   09/08/2020 

Meghan Van Ham  Crime Scene Tech   09/14/2020 

 

10 Years 
Carri Downing   EMT Superintendent   09/04/2015 

David Torres   Police Sergeant    09/23/2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 7674  - Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Grant 

Agreement Amendment No. 2 with the State of New Mexico 
Department of Transportation for CN: LP20037  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Engineering 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/4/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Anthony Henry, City Engineer  

 
Summary: 
 
A grant application to NMDOT was submitted on April 4, 2022. The City executed the 
grant agreement in November 2022 for $1,000,000 ($950,000 NMDOT / $50,000 City 
Match) for SR 208, Navajo & SR 218 Improvements-Roadway Maintenance Chip Sealing 
and striping SR 208 (US62/180 to SR 18), Navajo (Grimes St. to US 62/180), and SR 218 
(E. Bender) work to include signage, pavement markings, and signal improvements. 
 
The grant agreement will expire on December 31, 2025, and attached is a resolution for 
Amendment No. 2 to the grant agreement to extend the termination to December 31, 2026. 
 Staff anticipates utilizing an existing CES or Statewide Price Agreement to complete this 
maintenance work during the summer of 2026, depending on contractor availability.

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
 
Grant Amount: $1,000,000 
Local Match: $50,000 
State Match: $950,000 
Budget Line: 48-4048-44901-00358 
Budget Available: $1,200,000 
 

 
Attachments:  

Hobbs- LP20037 Grant Agreement 2- Reso  
LP20037 City of Hobbs_2nd amendment 

  
Recommendation: 
 
Consider and approve the Resolution for the Mayor to execute resolution and grant 
amendment

 
Approved By: 
 
Anthony Henry, City Engineer 09/04/2025 



Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/04/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/04/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/05/2025 
 



CITY OF HOBBS 
 

RESOLUTION NO.    7674     
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 
GRANT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 2  WITH THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO       

                   DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR CN: LP20037 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HOBBS, NEW 

MEXICO, that the Mayor be and hereby is, authorized and directed to execute on behalf of 

the City of Hobbs Grant Agreement Amendment No. 2 with the State of New Mexico 

Department of Transportation for Control No. LP20037; in the amount of $1,000,000.00 

(95%/5% share) and any certification or supporting documentation for the implementation 

of the grant agreement requirements.  The scope of the work includes surface treatment, 

striping, signage replacement and traffic signal equipment replacement along SR208 (West 

County Rd.), Navajo Rd. and SR218 (East Bender).  The Grant Agreement Amendment No. 

2 revises the expiration of the grant to December 31, 2026.  A copy of the Grant Agreement 

Amendment No. 2 is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.   

 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this   18th    day of    September  , 2025. 

 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      JOSEPH D. CALDERÓN, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 



 
Local Government Transportation Project Fund    Page 1 of 2   FY22 
LP20037 
Amendment - Time 

Contract No.  
Vendor No. 0000054339 
Control No. LP20037 

 
 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT FUND 

 
 
This Amendment is to the Agreement entered into between the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation (Department) and the City of Hobbs (Public Entity).  This Amendment is 
effective as of the date of the last party to sign on the signature page. 
 

RECITALS 
 
Whereas, the Department and the Public Entity entered into an Agreement, Contract No. 
D19658 , on 12/5/2022 and, 
 
Whereas, Section 19 allows for modification of the Agreement by an instrument in writing 
executed by the parties; and, 
 
Whereas, the Department and the Public Entity want to extend the term of the Agreement to 
allow for Project completion; and, 
 
Whereas, the parties agree to modify this Agreement.  
 
Now, therefore, the Department and the Public Entity agree as follows:  
 
 
1.  Section 6 Term, is deleted and replaced by the following: 
 

6.  Term 
This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all parties.  The effective date is the 
date when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This 
Agreement terminates on the earliest of the following dates: (a) Department receipt of the 
Certification of Completion or (b) December 31, 2026.  In the event an extension to the 
term is needed, the Public Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed 
justification to the Department sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely 
processing of an Amendment. Neither party shall have any obligation after said date 
except as stated in Sections 2e, 4l, 4n and 7. 

 
All other obligations set forth in the Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless 
expressly amended or modified by this Amendment.  
 



 
Local Government Transportation Project Fund    Page 2 of 2   FY22 
LP20037 
Amendment - Time 

Witness Whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s 
signature.  
 
 
New Mexico Department of Transportation 
 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: ________________________ 

Cabinet Secretary or Designee 
 

 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s 
Office of General Counsel 
 
 
By:_______________________________  Date: _________________ 
 Assistant General Counsel 

 
 

City of Hobbs 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
 
Name: ________________________ 
 
Title: _________________________ 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
City of Hobbs Clerk
 



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING:  Resolution No. 7675 - Regarding the Transfer 

of Location of Restaurant "A" Liquor License No. RES-000180 
Owned by Kui Liu, LLC, d/b/a Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi 
Bar from 915 East Bender Blvd. to 1015 Joe Harvey Blvd. in Hobbs, 
New Mexico  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
City Clerk 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/5/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Jan Fletcher, City Clerk  

 
Summary: 
 
Kui Liu, LLC, currently d/b/a as Tokyo Japanese Steak House & Sushi Bar, has applied to 
the State of New Mexico Regulation and Licensing Department (NMRLD), Alcoholic 
Beverage Control Division, and received preliminary approval for the transfer of location of 
Restaurant “A” Liquor License No. RES-000180 from 915 East Bender Blvd. to 1015 Joe 
Harvey Blvd, Hobbs, New Mexico, for the sale of beer and wine.  The applicant's proposed 
DBA name will be Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar.  The application was received 
by the City Clerk’s Office on August 11, 2025, and a public hearing must be held by the City 
within forty-five (45) days from receipt of such notice. The City has duly published notice of 
the hearing in the Hobbs News-Sun and properly notified the applicant of this hearing by 
email and certified mail. 
 
 

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The applicant has paid the required $250.00 administrative fee to the City for processing 
this application.

 
Attachments:  

Resolution - Kui Liu LLC dba Kobe Japanese Steakhouse  
Application Packet - Kobe Japanese Steakhouse  
Affidavit of Publication - Kobe Japanese Steakhouse  
Kobe Japanese Steakhouse Buffer Map for 1015 W Joe Harvey Blvd Rev0 (8-20-25) 

  
Recommendation: 
 
Motion to approve the resolution.

 
Approved By: 
 
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 09/05/2025 



Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/08/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/08/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/08/2025 
 



CITY OF HOBBS 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      7675    
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING THE TRANSFER OF LOCATION OF  
RESTAURANT "A" LIQUOR LICENSE NO. RES-000180  

OWNED BY KUI LIU, LLC, D/B/A KOBE JAPANESE STEAKHOUSE & SUSHI BAR  
FROM 915 EAST BENDER BLVD. TO 1015 JOE HARVEY BLVD. IN HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs has received the following application for transfer of 
location of Liquor License No. RES-000180: 
 

Owner of Existing License: KUI LIU, LLC 
Current D/B/A Name: Tokyo Japanese Steak House & Sushi Bar 
Premises Address: 915 East Bender Blvd. 

Hobbs, NM 88240 
 

Applicant Name: KUI LIU, LLC 
Applicant D/B/A Name: Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar 
Premises Address:   1015 Joe Harvey Blvd. 

Hobbs, NM 88240  
 

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico Regulation and Licensing Department, Alcoholic 
Beverage Control, has granted preliminary approval to the application for transfer of location of 
the restaurant liquor license as requested and a duly advertised public hearing is being held by 
the governing body of the City of Hobbs on September 15, 2025, on the question of whether or 
not the proposed transfer of location of the license should be granted. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that the transfer of location of Liquor License No. RES-000180 from 
Kui Liu, LLC, d/b/a Tokyo Japanese Steak House & Sushi Bar, 915 East Bender Blvd., to Kui 
Liu, LLC, d/b/a Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar, 1015 Joe Harvey Blvd., Hobbs, New 
Mexico, be and is hereby _______________ (approved or disapproved). 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this  15th  day of   September   , 2025. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      JOSEPH D. CALDERÓN, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 





















1015
KOBE JAPANESE STEAKHOUSE AND SUSHI BAR

W JOE HARVEY BLVD

N
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 A
V

E

F
A

IR
M

O
N

T
 C

T

3

8

5

6

9

7

4

12

10

16

11

18 14

913 825

901

3601

1005

1127

1001

3511

3517

3527

3513

3519

3541

1010

3607

1207

3615

1101

3609

1215

1120

1020

3523

3521

3510

3509

3515

1100

3529

3531

3525

3533

1014

1220

3601

DISCLAIMER: THE CITY OF HOBBS MAKES NO WARRANTY, REPRESENTATION OR GUARANTEE OF ANY KIND 
REGARDING ANY GIS DATA PROVIDED HEREIN OR THE SOURCES OF SUCH DATA. THE CITY OF HOBBS 
SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. DATA CONTAINED WITHIN THIS PRODUCT IS PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF HOBBS FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY LEGAL REQUIRED SURVEYING STANDARD.

0 175 350 52587.5
Feet

Date: 8/20/2025 Time: 4:58:50 PM1 inch = 175 feet

City of Hobbbs GIS Division SY

Kobe Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar
300 ft Buffer Zone Map for Liquor License for 1015 W. Joe Harvey Blvd. .

Legend

300 ft Buffer from Building

300 ft Buffer from Property

Parcels

KOBE JAPANESE STEAKHOUSE & SUSHI BAR

Religious

Educational

Daycares

Water Lines 10" and Larger

Streets - Sidewalk

Streets - Pavement

Buildings

Parcel of Applicant's Business

Other Parcels of Note



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 7676 - Authorizing the City of Hobbs to Submit a 

Grant Application to the State of New Mexico, Department of 
Transportation, for the Hobbs Express Public Transportation 
Program for FY 26-27 Under Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
City Clerk 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/2/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Jan Fletcher, City Clerk  

 
Summary: 
 
The City of Hobbs operates the Hobbs Express Public Transportation Program under a 
Section 5311 Grant through the Federal Transit Act (FTA) administered by the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation (NMDOT), Transit and Rail Division. The program has been 
in continuous operation  by the City under this format since 1989.  The annual grant 
application requires that each applicant submit a resolution of support from the municipality 
served by the project which is attached for consideration by the Commission.   
  
This is a formulary grant for Federal FY 26-27 and the grant application is summarized as 
follows: 
 
 

 

Total Federal Share Local Share 

Administrative (80/20) $110,550.00 $88,440.00 $22,110.00 
Operating (50/50) $1,327,050.00 $663,525.00 $663,525.00 
Capital (80/20) $250,000.00 $200,000.00 $50,000.00 
TOTAL $1,687,600.00 $951,965.00 $735,635.00 
 

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The City’s portion of the funding is provided by the City’s General Fund.  Fares are being 
charged to all riders.  Upon approval of the grant application by the NMDOT, a project 
agreement will be presented to the Commission for formal consideration at a later date. 
 

 
Attachments:  

Resolution - Hobbs Express Grant Application 26-27  
FY 26-27 Grant Summary  
Letters of Support 



  
Recommendation: 
 
Motion to approve the resolution.

 
Approved By: 
 
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 09/05/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/08/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/08/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/08/2025 
 



CITY OF HOBBS 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     7676    
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF HOBBS  
TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO, 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
HOBBS EXPRESS PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

FOR FY 26-27 UNDER SECTION 5311 OF THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ACT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs seeks to continue to offer public transportation to 
residents and visitors in the City of Hobbs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico, under Section 5311 of the Federal Transit 
Act, is requesting applications for grant funding to assist local communities with public 
transportation needs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs hereby acknowledges and supports submission of 
an application for FTA Section 5311 Rural Transportation Grant Funding which provides 
funding to offset the administrative, operating and capital costs of operating public 
transportation services in rural areas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs continues to support the transit program and 
commits to provide the minimum required local matching funds in the proposed amount 
of $735,635.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO, that the City Manager be, and he hereby is, authorized 
and directed to take all necessary and appropriate action to effectuate this resolution and 
specifically to submit a grant application for FTA Section 5311 Rural Transportation Grant 
Funding for FY 26-27 to the State of New Mexico, Department of Transportation, for 
operation of the Hobbs Express public transportation program.     

 
 
 PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 15th day of September, 2025. 
 
 
            
      _______________________________________ 
      JOSEPH D. CALDERÓN, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 

































 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Award of Bid 1621-25; Rehabilitation of the 

600,000-Gallon Concrete Water Storage Tank Located at the HIAP 
Booster Pump Station (BPS)  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Utilities 

DATE SUBMITTED: 8/26/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Tim Woomer, Utilities Director  

 
Summary: 
 
This Project includes the complete rehabilitation of the 600,000-gallon Concrete Water 
Storage Tank located at the HIAP Booster Pump Station. Specifically, the repair, repainting, 
lining, and cleaning/disinfection of the HIAP water storage tank on all interior surfaces. The 
complete repair, cleaning, and repainting of all exterior surfaces. The Project includes any 
other miscellaneous repairs and incidental items encountered. Work is anticipated to start 
no earlier than November 1, 2025. 
 
Two qualified bids were received for this Project: 
 
Viking Industrial Painting, LLC, La Vista, NE     $430,100.00 
TMI Coatings, LLC, St. Paul MN                        $847,200.00

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$430,100.00 (Not Including NMGRT) 
Funds for this work are budgeted in the Utilities Joint Construction budget, 614061-44901 
project 00139.

 
Attachments:  

bid 1621-25 HIAP  
Bid Tabulation - HIAP Concrete Tank  
Viking Industrial Painting LLC  
TMI Coatings LLC 

  
Recommendation: 
 
Award Bid 1621-25, HIAP Water Storage Tank Rehabilitation Project to Viking Industrial 
Painting LLC, located in La Vista, NE, in the amount of $430,100.00

 
Approved By: 
 
Tim Woomer, Utilities Director 08/26/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 08/27/2025 



Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 08/27/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/05/2025 
 



























































 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Award of Bid 1622-25; Rehabilitation of the 

2,000,000-Gallon Concrete Water Storage Tank Located at the 
Jefferson Booster Pump Station (BPS)  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Utilities 

DATE SUBMITTED: 8/26/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Tim Woomer, Utilities Director  

 
Summary: 
 
This Project includes the complete rehabilitation of the 2,000,000-gallon Concrete Water 
Storage Tank located at the Jefferson Booster Pump Station. Specifically, the repair, 
repainting, lining, and cleaning/disinfection of the Jefferson water storage tank on all the 
interior surfaces. The complete repair, cleaning and repainting of the exterior surfaces. 
Including any other miscellaneous repairs and incidental items encountered. Work is 
anticipated to start no earlier than November 1, 2025. 
 
Two qualified bids were received for the Project: 
Viking Industrial Painting, LLC, La Vista, NE      $  778,880.00 
TMI Coatings, LLC, St. Paul MN                        $1,386,000.00

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$778,880.00 (Not Including NMGRT) 
Funds for this work are budgeted in the Utilities Joint Construction budget, 614061-44901 
project 00139.

 
Attachments:  

bid 1622-25 JEFFERSON TANK  
Bid Tabulation - Jefferson Tank  
Viking Industrial Painting LLC Jefferson  
TMI Coatings LLC Jefferson 

  
Recommendation: 
 
Award Bid 1622-25, Jefferson Water Tank Rehabilitation Project to Viking Industrial 
Painting LLC, located in La Vista, NE, in the amount of $778,880.00

 
Approved By: 
 
Tim Woomer, Utilities Director 08/26/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 08/27/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 08/27/2025 



Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/05/2025 
 



BID SUMMARY

BrD/PRoPosAL No. \\no}- aS
-\ 

<' ' -r\
FUR\i1SH gx{C-rc-=otJ \q'n\L {-o{le"r-

BIDDER /ilcin,1
{fls'ny *N"q*

Tne
NM CONTRACTORS
LICENSE

/ ,,/z_
BID BOND -,/ 

/_ t/ ,.
ADDENDUMS /.-
BID FORM tl

'/ --
,/ ,/SUBCONTRACTORS

LIST
RESIDENT BIDDERS
PREFERENCE NO.

VETERANS
DPtrFtrRtrNCtr

/

CAMPAIGN
CONTRIBUTION
FORM

/
NON-COLLUSION
AFFIDAVIT
RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURE FORM ,/

CERTIFICATION
REGARDING
DEBARMENT

,/
/

BASE BID TOTAL

ALTERNATE 1

ALTERNATE 2

ALTERNATE 3

ALTERNATE 4

\Bsb;coo*TOTAL

"-{q 
,x 8 0-';



























































 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 7677 - Authorizing the Expenditure of Funds to be 

Used for the Purchase of Playground Equipment and Improvements 
to Taylor Elementary School Park  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Legal 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/4/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney  

 
Summary: 
 
This resolution authorizes City staff to expend funds toward new playground equipment and 
improvements to Taylor Elementary School Park, a Hobbs Municipal School located at 
1520 N. Breckon Dr., Hobbs, New Mexico. Attached is a map of the park’s location and a 
rendering of the proposed improvements. The estimated budget for the upgraded design 
and improvements is $161,245.00. This fiscal expenditure comes from Commissioner 
Larron Fields' discretionary funds and will be classified as a capital improvement of public 
property expenditure.

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The use of Commissioner Fields' discretionary funds in the amount of $161,245.00 will be 
deducted from line 010100-44901-00317in Special Projects District 3 for FY25-26.

 
Attachments:  

RESOLUTION -Taylor elementary School park (04.2.25)  
MOA City and Schools for Taylor Elementary School playgroup equipment and repair  
02.26.25 COMMISSION SPECIAL PROJECT REQ  
PROPOSAL  
TAYLOR SCHOOL PARK_11X17-01 

  
Recommendation: 
 
The Commission should consider approval of the Resolution.

 
Approved By: 
 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/04/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/05/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/05/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/05/2025 
 



CITY OF HOBBS 

RESOLUTION NO.     7677   

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS TO BE USED FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT AND  

IMPROVEMENTS TO TAYLOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PARK 
 

 WHEREAS, District 3 City Commissioner Larron Fields seeks to utilize 
$161,245.00 of his discretionary funds for FY 25-26, via a Memorandum of Agreement 
(“MOA”) with the Hobbs Municipal Schools (“HMS”), for new playground equipment and 
improvements to Taylor Elementary School park, a Hobbs Municipal School located at 
1520 N. Breckon Dr. Hobbs, New Mexico; and 

 WHEREAS, the expenditure of discretionary funds for this project will constitute a 
capital improvement of public property and thus qualify for the spending of discretionary 
funds; and 

 WHEREAS, under the terms of the MOA, HMS shall use the grant funds by May 
31, 2027, and any unused grant funds shall be returned to the City of Hobbs by June 30, 
2027; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO that the Mayor and City Manager be and are hereby 
directed to execute any and all paperwork necessary to accomplish the purchase of 
equipment and improvements to the Taylor Elementary School park located at 1520 N. 
Breckon Dr. Hobbs, New Mexico up to the amount of $161,245.00. 

 PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 15th day of September, 2025. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      JOSEPH D. CALDERÓN, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 



Page 1 of 3 
 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF HOBBS AND HOBBS MUNICIPAL SCHOOLS 

 
 This Memorandum of Agreement is made on the date of the signatures below by 
and between City of Hobbs (hereinafter “City”) and the Hobbs Municipal Schools 
(hereinafter “Schools”). 
  

PURPOSE 
 
 The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement is to memorialize the terms and 
agreement, including changes thereto, between City and Schools regarding City’s grant of 
$161,245.00 for new playground equipment and improvements to Taylor Elementary 
School park, a Hobbs Municipal School located at 1520 N. Breckon Dr. Hobbs, New 
Mexico;  
 
 WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on September 15, 2025, the City of Hobbs City 
Commission approved the request of City Commissioner Larron Fields; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Schools wishes to accept the funds for new playground equipment 
and improvements to Taylor Elementary School park. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. The City will provide a grant up to $161,245.00 to the Schools. 
 
2. The Schools will use the grant funds for new playground equipment and 
improvements to Taylor Elementary School park, a Hobbs Municipal School located at 
1520 N. Breckon Dr. Hobbs, New Mexico;  
 
3. The Schools will use the grant funds by May 31, 2027. 
 
4. The Schools will return any unused portion of the grant funds to the City by June 

30, 2027. 
  

 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

 
City and Schools and their public employees (as defined in the New Mexico Tort 

Claims Act) do not waive sovereign immunity, do not waive any defense(s), and/or do not 
waive any limitation(s) pursuant to the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.  No provision in this 
Memorandum of Agreement modifies and/or waives any provision of the New Mexico 
Tort Claims Act as it relates to City and Schools and their public employees. 

 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

LIABILITY 
 

Each party agrees to bear liability and responsibility for the negligent, reckless or 
deliberate acts or omissions of their own officers and employees, as limited by the New 
Mexico Tort Claims Act. 

 
THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

 
It is specifically agreed between the parties executing the Memorandum of 

Agreement that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of the  Memorandum 
of Agreement to create in the public or any member thereof, a third party beneficiary, or to 
authorize anyone not a party to the Memorandum of Agreement to maintain, pursuant to 
the provisions of the Memorandum of Agreement, a suit of any nature, including but not 
limited to suits alleging wrongful death, bodily and/or personal injury to person(s), 
damages to property(ies), and/or any cause of action. 

 
INSURANCE 

 
Both City and Schools shall maintain liability insurance or qualify as a self-insured 

entity, as required by law. 
 

TERM 
 
 This Memorandum of Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the grant 
funds have been fully utilized or by June 30th, 2027, whichever occurs first. 
 

SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any provision of this Memorandum of Agreement is found to be invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions will continue to be valid and 
enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this Memorandum of Agreement is 
invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision, it would become valid and 
enforceable, then such provision will be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as 
so limited. 
 

NO ORAL MODIFICATION 
 

 The foregoing constitutes the entire agreement between the City and the Schools 
and may be modified only in writing, signed by both the City and the Schools. Amendments 
and alterations to this Memorandum of Agreement after execution may only be made in 
writing signed by both City and Schools.  
 
  



Page 3 of 3 
 

GOVERNING LAW 
 

 This Memorandum of Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of New Mexico. 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 This Memorandum of Agreement shall be in full force and effect upon execution 
and approval of the parties hereto. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
HOBBS MUNICIPAL SCHOOLS 
 
BY: ________________________________  Date: ______________ 
 Gene Strickland, 
 Superintendent  
 
ATTEST: 
 
CITY OF HOBBS 
 
 
BY: ________________________________  Date: ______________ 
 Sam Cobb, 
 Mayor  
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
By: ________________________________  Date: ______________ 
 Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon 
 Deputy City Attorney 
 
 
By: ________________________________  Date: _____________ 
 Attorney for Schools 
 
   
 
 















 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 7678 - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

between Hobbs Municipal Schools, Hobbs Police Department and 
Lea County Sheriff's Office  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Police 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/5/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: August Fons, Police Chief  

 
Summary: 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding formalizes the assignment and presence of certified 
uniformed School Resource Officers (SROs) employed by the Hobbs Police Department 
and the Lea County Sheriff's Office on Hobbs School Campuses. The mission is to promote 
a safe learning environment through law enforcement, mentoring, education, relationship 
building and collaboration with school staff.

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Annual Revenue $30,000

 
Attachments:  

HHS LEA RESOLUTION-1  
MOU_07.07.25 with LEA 

  
Recommendation: 
 
Motion to approve the resolution.

 
Approved By: 
 
August Fons, Police Chief 09/05/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/08/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/08/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/08/2025 
 



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      7678     
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE HOBBS MUNICIPAL SCHOOLS, THE CITY OF HOBBS/HOBBS 
POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE LEA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR THE 

ASSIGNMENT OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER(S) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Schools have previously entered into agreements for the 

assignment of School Resource Officer(s); and 

 WHEREAS, the Schools desire to continue the assignment of School Resource 

Officer(s) on Hobbs School campuses; and  

 WHEREAS, it is deemed that this memorandum of understanding is for the 

common good of the schools, students, staff, and general public.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO that the Mayor, or designee, is hereby directed to 

execute a Memorandum of Understanding with Hobbs Municipal Schools, City of Hobbs 

and Lea County Sheriff’s Office. 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 15th day of September, 2025. 

 

      ______________________________________ 
      JOSEPH D. CALDERÓN, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 



 
 

1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between 
Hobbs Municipal Schools ("School") 
Hobbs Police Department ("HPD") 
Lea County Sheriff’s Office ("LCSO") 

Effective Date: ____________, 2025 
Review Date: Annually thereafter 

1. Purpose & Mission 

This MOU formalizes the assignment and presence of certified uniformed School Resource 
Officers (SROs) employed by HPD and LCSO on school campuses. The mission is to promote a 
safe learning environment through law enforcement, mentoring, education, relationship building 
and, collaboration with school staff. 

2. Definitions 

• SRO: Certified law enforcement officer assigned by HPD or LCSO to Hobbs Municipal 
Schools. 

• Parties: The School, HPD, and LCSO. 

3. Program Structure 

• SROs remain employees of HPD or LCSO and under their training, supervision, and 
personnel policies. 

• Selection jointly involves law enforcement and school representatives; final appointment 
rests with HPD Chief or Sheriff. 

• Quantity of assigned officers/deputies will be determined in partnership with HMS 
Director of Student Safety and School Security, HPD and LCSO.  

4. Duties & Role 

4.1 Law Enforcement 

• Enforce criminal laws, investigate crimes on campus, and make arrests when appropriate. 
• SROs do not handle routine school disciplinary actions—those remain school 

responsibility—but may assist in emergencies. 

4.2 Educational & Mentoring 

• Provide classroom instruction (e.g., law‐related topics, drug prevention), mentor students, 
and serve as a trusted resource. 

4.3 Crime Prevention & Community Liaison 



 
 

2 
 

• Conduct crime prevention through patrols, being highly visible on school campuses, and 
advise on school security. 

• Participate in events, threat-assessment teams, and collaborate with community services. 

5. Working Hours 

• SRO hours align with school hours; court appearances count as work hours. Coverage of 
school-based activities and events. Emergency reassignments to city or county duties may 
adjust service coverage. 

6. Training & Qualifications 

• SROs hold current law enforcement officer certification and meet departmental 
standards. 

• Receive specialized training: juvenile development, crisis intervention, anti-bias policing, 
FERPA, search & seizure, etc. 

• School to provide registration and lodging expenses for attendance and participation in 
NASRO and other local, regional or state school related opportunities. 

7. Chain of Command & Coordination 

• HMS Director of School Safety and Security to coordinate and liaise with SRO’s and 
command staff of HPD & LCSO 

• SROs report to HPD/LCSO supervisors; coordinate daily with school principals or 
designees.  

• Annual goal-setting and periodic meetings assess program effectiveness. 

8. Data, Reporting & Accountability 

• Monthly or quarterly reports listing incidents, referrals, and educational activities 
submitted to school and law enforcement leadership. 

9. Searches & Student Privacy 

• SROs conduct searches based only on probable cause for criminal violations; no strip or 
body-cavity searches. 

• Comply with FERPA, state law, and guidelines governing interviews, arrests, and access 
to student records. 

10. Use of Force & Weapons 

• SROs may carry duty weapons and use force only as allowed by law and departmental 
rules. 

• Discipline remains school’s domain; law enforcement actions defer to criminal standards. 

11. Facilities & Equipment 



 
 

3 
 

• The School provides office space, desk phone, computer and district radio. HPD/LCSO 
supplies police equipment, uniforms, and department radios. 

12. Term, Compensation & Termination 

• Term: Effective upon execution, to be in effect for three (3) years from date of execution. 
• Hobbs Schools to compensate each department $30,000 per year to offset department 

expenses. 
• Either party may terminate with 60 days’ written notice. 

13. Amendment & Review 

• This MOU is reviewed annually, with input from school staff and law enforcement  
• Amendments require mutual written agreement. 

 

Signatory Section 

Entity Name Title Date 
Hobbs Municipal Schools ___________________ Superintendent ______________ 
Hobbs Police Department ___________________ Chief of Police ______________ 
Lea County Sheriff’s Office ___________________ Sheriff ______________ 
 
 



 

CITY OF HOBBS 
 STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

  
 MEETING DATE: 

 September 15, 2025  

 

 
 
SUBJECT: FINAL ADOPTION:  Ordinance No. 1164 - Authorizing the Sale and 

Conveyance of Certain City-Owned Land Located within the Hobbs 
Industrial Airpark to Stag Amazon, LLC  

 
DEPT OF ORIGIN: 

 
Planning 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/8/2025 
SUBMITTED BY: Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager  

 
Summary: 
 
The City of Hobbs is the owner of certain real property, containing 6.83 acres, located 
adjacent to Industrial St.  Covenant Health Hobbs has expressed its intent to assign its 
option to purchase the subject land to Stag Amazon, LLC, and the City has negotiated the 
terms of a Real Estate Purchase Agreement ("REPA") with Stag Amazon, LLC for the 
direct purchase of said property.  Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 3-54-1, and applicable 
provisions of the Hobbs Municipal Code, the City is authorized to sell or lease real property 
through ordinance adopted by the governing body after notice and public hearing. 
  
 

1. APPRAISED VALUE OF PROPERTY. The appraised Fee Simple Market Value of 
the land only was determined to be $565,000 for the 6.83 acres. 

2. PURCHASE PRICE.  $730,000 
3. PURPOSE OF PURCHASE. The building on the property currently owned by 

Covenant Health Hobbs is utilized for an Amazon warehouse. 

 
 

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The revenue from the sale will be booked against the Land Acquisition Fund.

 
Attachments:  

ORDINANCE No. COVENANT - AMAZON PURCHASE 08-07-25  
REPA - COVENANT - STAG - Final with edits 8-7-25  
EXHIBIT 1 - Leased Boundary Description  
EXHIBIT 2 - ASSIGNMENT OF OPTION TO PURCHASE - 8-7-25  
EXHIBIT 3 - Estoppel  
EXHIBIT 4 - Ord No. 1161 - First Amendment and original ground lease  
Affidavit of Publication- Stag Amazon LLC 

  
Recommendation: 
 



Consideration of the Final Approval to adopt the Ordinance for the sale of property
 

Approved By: 
 
Todd Randall, Assistant City Manager 09/08/2025 
Toby Spears, Finance Director 09/08/2025 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 09/08/2025 
Manny Gomez, City Manager 09/08/2025 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.      1164     
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE AND CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN 
CITY-OWNED LAND LOCATED WITHIN THE HOBBS INDUSTRIAL AIRPARK TO 
STAG AMAZON, LLC AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE TRANSACTION. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hobbs ("City") is the owner of certain real property, 
containing 6.83 acres, located within the corporate limits of the City of Hobbs, Lea 
County, New Mexico, currently leased to Covenant Health Hobbs under a Ground 
Lease authorized by Ordinance No. 957, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, Covenant Health Hobbs has expressed its intent to assign its 
option to purchase the subject land to Stag Amazon, LLC, and the City has negotiated 
the terms of a Real Estate Purchase Agreement ("REPA") with Stag Amazon, LLC 
for the direct purchase of said property; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 3-54-1, and applicable 
provisions of the Hobbs Municipal Code, the City is authorized to sell or lease real 
property through ordinance adopted by the governing body after notice and public 
hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body finds that the sale of the subject property is in the 
best interest of the City and its residents and that the terms of sale are fair, reasonable, 
and consistent with the appraised value of the land; and 

 
 WHEREAS, inclusive in this Ordinance are the following: 
 

1. TERM OF SALE.   
 

a. The City proposes to sell a parcel of land comprised of 6.83 acres for 
purchase price of $730,000.00. 
 

b. An Agreement for the Purchase of the Real Estate concerning terms of the 
sale for the property are part of the Proposed Ordinance, based on 
negotiation between the City and Stag Amazon, LLC. 

 
2. APPRAISED VALUE OF PROPERTY. The appraised Fee Simple Market Value 

of the land only was determined to be $565,000 for the 6.83 acres. 
 

3. SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS:  The Purchase Price is to be paid with an earnest 
money deposit with the balance to be paid as follows: 

  



Page 2 of 3 
 

a. Earnest Money Deposit:   $10,000 
b. At Closing the Balance of Cash:  $720,000 
c. Total Payments:     $730,000 

 
4. PURCHASE PRICE.  $730,000 

 
5. NAME OF PURCHASER.  Stag Amazon, LLC, Attn:  Steven Willis, 6905 82nd 

Street, Suite 300, Lubbock, Texas, 79424 
 

6. PURPOSE OF PURCHASE. The building on the property and currently owned by 
Covenant Health Hobbs is utilized for an Amazon warehouse.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF HOBBS, NEW MEXICO:  

Section 1. The City of Hobbs is hereby authorized to sell the City-owned 

property as described in Exhibit 1 (Leased Boundary Survey) to Stag Amazon, LLC 

for the purchase price of $730,000.00, as set forth in the Real Estate Purchase 

Agreement. 

Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Real Estate Purchase 

Agreement, the Assignment of Option to Purchase, the Special Warranty Deed, 

closing documents, and any other instruments necessary to effectuate the sale of the 

property to Stag Amazon, LLC. 

Section 3. The subject property is to be subdivided prior to closing, and the final 

legal description shall conform to the recorded plat, which shall be prepared based on 

the existing Leased Boundary Survey and recorded prior to closing. 

Section 4. The sale shall be subject to all applicable covenants, restrictions, 

easements, and matters of record, including those previously established under 

Ordinance No. 957 and any applicable City and State regulations. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after publication 

by title and general summary in accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 3-17-5, unless 

a valid referendum petition is filed within thirty (30) days following its adoption, in which 

case the Ordinance shall be suspended pending further action by the governing body 

or electorate. 

 
  



Page 3 of 3 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 15th day of September, 2025. 
  

 
 ___________________________________ 

 JOSEPH D. CALDERON, Mayor Pro Tem 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______      
JAN FLETCHER, City Clerk 
 
 
 



{00179817} REPA – AMAZON PARCEL Page 1 of 5 
 

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT  
CITY OF HOBBS AND STAG AMAZON, LLC 

 
This Real Estate Purchase Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this ____ day of 
____________, 2025, by and between the City of Hobbs, a New Mexico municipal 
corporation ("City"), and Stag Amazon, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 
("Purchaser"). 

RECITALS: 
A. The City is the owner of certain real property located in Hobbs, New Mexico, described 
as: 

A portion of the premises currently leased to Covenant Health Hobbs under 
the Ground Lease (as defined below), as generally described by the 
existing "Leased Boundary Description" attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference (the "Property"). A final recorded plat and 
legal description will be completed and recorded prior to Closing (as 
defined below). 

B. The Property is currently subject to a Ground Lease dated December 4, 2006, as 
amended by the First Amendment dated September 16, 2024 (collectively, the "Ground 
Lease"), originally entered into between the City and Lea Regional Medical Center, and 
the leasehold interest created thereby was subsequently assigned to Covenant Health 
Hobbs ("Covenant"). 

C. The Ground Lease includes an option to purchase the Property at market value. As 
contemplated by that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement dated July 3, 2025 between 
Covenant, as seller, and Purchaser, as buyer (the “Covenant-Purchaser PSA”), 
Covenant desires to assign the Ground Lease to Purchaser, including, without limitation, 
Covenant’s right to purchase the Property under the Ground Lease, pursuant to that 
certain Assignment and Assumption of Ground Lease (“Ground Lease Assignment”). 
The City agrees to such assignment and to convey the Property to Purchaser pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Purchase and Sale. 
The City agrees to sell and convey, and Purchaser agrees to purchase, the Property on 
the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

2. Purchase Price. 
The purchase price shall be $730,000.00 (the “Purchase Price”), based on a recent 
appraisal prepared by JPM Valuation Services dated May 14, 2025.  City and Purchaser 
agree and acknowledge that this Purchase Price described herein is the market value, as 
contemplated in the Ground Lease. 



{00179817} REPA – AMAZON PARCEL Page 2 of 5 
 

3. Earnest Money. 
Purchaser shall deposit $10,000.00 with the closing agent within fourteen (14) business 
days following Commission approval of this Agreement. 

4. Closing. 
Closing shall occur on or before 180 days from Commission approval and adoption of the 
ordinance authorizing this Agreement (the “Closing”), unless extended by mutual written 
agreement. Possession transfers at Closing. 

5. Title and Deed. 
a. City shall convey the Property to Purchaser by Special Warranty Deed (the 
“Deed”), free and clear of all liens except those of record. The conveyance shall be subject 
to all covenants, easements, restrictions, and matters of record, including those 
referenced in the Building Purchase Agreement approved under City Ordinance No. 957, 
to the extent they remain applicable and enforceable. 

b. City shall provide a title commitment (“Title Report”) and owner’s title insurance 
policy, at City’s cost. The legal description in the Deed shall conform to the final recorded 
plat to be completed prior to Closing.  Upon the issuance of the Title Report and delivery 
of same to Purchaser, together with copies of the documents and instruments upon which 
the exceptions contained therein are based, Purchaser shall have ten (10) days from the 
date of Purchaser’s receipt of the Title Report to object in writing to any exception to title 
set forth in the Title Report (except for all monetary liens which are hereby objected to and 
shall be removed by City on or before the Closing Date (collectively, the “Disapproved 
Items”).  In the event that Purchaser does not timely provide City with written notice of an 
objection to any exception to title in accordance with this Section 5.b, Purchaser shall be 
deemed to have approved such exception to title.  In the event that Purchaser provides 
written objections to any exception to title, City shall have ten (10) days to provide notice 
to Purchaser that: (a) City will remove the Disapproved Items (or commit to have the 
Disapproved Items removed as of the Closing); or (b) provide affirmative title insurance 
coverage therefor; or (c) City cannot or is unwilling to remove the Disapproved Items.  If 
City notifies Purchaser that it will remove the Disapproved Items, City shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to remove or provide affirmative title insurance coverage 
for the Disapproved Items. In the event that City shall provide Purchaser with written notice 
within such ten (10) day period that City cannot or is unwilling to remove or provide 
affirmative title insurance coverage for the Disapproved Items, Purchaser may elect, at 
any time prior to Closing, in its sole and absolute discretion, to either terminate this 
Agreement in accordance with Section 10 by providing City written notice of such 
termination, or waive its objections to the Disapproved Items that City cannot or is unwilling 
to remove or provide affirmative title insurance coverage for and proceed to Closing.  In 
the event that City does not respond to Purchaser’s objections in writing within such ten 
(10) day period, City shall be deemed to have given notice that City cannot or is unwilling 
to remove or provide affirmative title insurance coverage for the Disapproved Items.  



{00179817} REPA – AMAZON PARCEL Page 3 of 5 
 

6. Assignment of Ground Lease 
City acknowledges and consents to the Ground Lease Assignment from Covenant to 
Purchaser, which approved form is attached as Exhibit 2. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary, if Purchaser terminates this Agreement to purchase the Property, City’s 
foregoing consent to the Ground Lease Assignment shall not be revoked and Covenant 
right to assign the Ground Lease to Purchaser shall continue in full force and effect. City 
and Purchaser agree that upon full execution of the Ground Lease Assignment and the 
closing of the sale transaction contemplated by the Covenant-Purchaser PSA, Covenant 
shall be released in full from any and all obligations and liability with respect to the Ground 
Lease. This section shall survive the Closing or sooner termination of this Agreement. 

7. Survey. 
The City shall provide the existing Leased Boundary Description, attached hereto as 
Exhibit 1, for reference. A final recorded plat creating the parcel to be conveyed shall be 
completed and recorded by the City prior to Closing. 

8. Environmental. 
Purchaser has received and accepted all existing environmental reports. No further 
environmental contingencies apply. 

9. Closing Costs. 
City shall pay for title commitment and recording. Purchaser shall pay title premium, legal 
fees, and all other closing costs. The cost of the platting process shall be borne by the 
City. 

10. Termination and Default. 

If either party defaults under this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall provide written 
notice of such default and the defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default. 
If the default is not cured within such time, the non-defaulting party may terminate this 
Agreement by written notice and pursue any remedies available at law or equity. 

If the City terminates this Agreement due to Purchaser’s uncured default, the City shall retain 
the Earnest Money as liquidated damages. 

If the Agreement is terminated due to (i) City’s failure or inability to cure Purchaser’s title 
objections, (ii) the non-occurrence of any other condition on Purchaser’s obligation to close, 
(iii) any other reason except for Purchaser’s default, then the Earnest Money shall be 
promptly refunded to Purchaser. 

This Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no further force or effect if the Closing 
has not occurred within twelve (12) months of the date of Commission approval, unless 
extended by mutual written agreement. 
 
11. Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligation to Close.  Purchaser shall not be obligated to 
close the purchase of the Property unless on or prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall 
have acquired the leasehold interest in the Ground Lease pursuant to the Ground Lease 



{00179817} REPA – AMAZON PARCEL Page 4 of 5 
 

Assignment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the acquisition of the leasehold 
interest in the Ground Lease shall be at Purchaser’s sole cost and the failure of this condition 
to be satisfied shall not be City’s default. 
 
12. Miscellaneous. 

- Governing Law: New Mexico law applies. Venue shall be in Lea County. 
- Ordinance Requirement: This Agreement is contingent upon the adoption of an 

ordinance by the City Commission. 

13. Exhibits. 
- Exhibit 1: Leased Boundary Survey 
- Exhibit 2: Ground Lease Assignment 
- Exhibit 3: Consent Estoppel and Recognition Agreement 
- Exhibit 4: Ordinance 1161 – First Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement with 

Covenant Hospital Hobbs at 5625 N. Lovington Hwy. 

13. Entire Document. 

This instrument constitutes the entire agreement between the City and the Purchaser, and 
there are no agreements, understandings, warranties, or representations between the 
Purchaser and the City except as set forth herein. This Agreement cannot be amended 
except in writing executed by the Purchaser and the City. 

[Signatures on following page.] 

  



{00179817} REPA – AMAZON PARCEL Page 5 of 5 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement effective as of the date first 
written above. 

CITY:      PURCHASER: 

THE CITY OF HOBBS   STAG AMAZON, LLC,  
a Texas limited liability company 

 
                                           
  
                                                       By:       
Mayor Sam Cobb                          Name:       
      Title:       
      Address:      
      Phone:      
           
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
                                                                                                                           
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk    Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon  

Deputy City Attorney 
 

Joinder: 

By signing below, Covenant acknowledges and agrees as to the terms and 
conditions in Section 6 above only.  

COVENANT: 
 
COVENANT HOSPITAL HOBBS, 
a Texas nonprofit corporation 
 
 
By:      
Name:      
Its:      



Exhibit 1 – Leased Boundary Description – Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT 1
LEASED BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, 
TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 38 EAST, N.M.P.M., CITY OF HOBBS, LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, AND 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A 1/2" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED "JWSC PS12641" SET FOR A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF INDUSTRIAL ROAD FROM WHICH A BRASS CAP IN CONCRETE FOUND FOR THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7 BEARS N49-49‘41"E 80.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF THE TEXAS/NEW MEXICO RAILROAD AND S4O1O'19"E ALONG THE SAID RAILROAD RIGHT 
OF WAY UNE 2539.19 FEET AND S00°40‘41"E ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 7 A DISTANCE OF 
1207.74 FEET;

THEN S49D49’41"W 414.94 FEET TO A 1/2" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED "JWSC PS12641” SET FOR THE 
MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THEN N40D10‘19"W 351.06 FEET TO A 1/2" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED "JWSC PS12641" SET FOR AN 
INTERIOR CORNER OF THIS TRACT; 

THEN S49D49'41"W 75.00 FEET TO A 1/2" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED "JWSC PSI2641" SET FOR A CORNER 
OF THIS TRACT;

THEN N4OD1O’19"W 309.80 FEET TO 1/2" REBAR WITH CAP MARKED "JWSC PS12641" SET FOR THE MOST 
WESTERLY CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THEN N49D49‘41"E 489.94 FEET TO A 1/2" REBAR FOUND FOR THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THIS 
TRACT AND A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INDUSTRIAL ROAD;

THEN S40D10’19"E ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF INDUSTRIAL ROAD 660.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND CONTAINS 297,451.34 SQUARE FEET AND 6.83 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS.



 Exhibit 2 - Page 1 of 2 
 

Exhibit 2 
Assignment of Option to Purchase 

 
This Assignment of Option to Purchase ("Assignment") is made and entered into as of the 
___ day of ____________, 2025, by and among Covenant Health Hobbs ("Assignor"), 
Stag Amazon, LLC ("Assignee"), and the City of Hobbs ("City"). 
 
RECITALS: 
 
A. Assignor is the current lessee under that certain Ground Lease dated December 4, 
2006, as amended, between the City and Assignor, which includes an option to purchase 
the real property described in Exhibit 3 attached hereto ("Option"). 
 
B. Assignor desires to assign its rights under the Option to Assignee, and Assignee desires 
to assume such rights, subject to the City’s consent. 
 
C. The City consents to this Assignment and acknowledges that the Option may be 
exercised by Assignee pursuant to the terms of the Ground Lease. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the parties 
agree: 
 
1. Assignment. 
 
Assignor hereby assigns to Assignee all of its rights, title, and interests in and to the Option 
to Purchase. 
 
2. Assumption. 
 
Assignee accepts such assignment and assumes all obligations related to the Option. 
 
3. Consent. 
 
The City consents to this Assignment and affirms that Assignee may exercise the Option 
subject to the terms of the Ground Lease. 
 
4. Binding Effect. 
 
This Assignment shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective successors and assigns. 
 
  



 Exhibit 2 - Page 2 of 2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Assignment as of the date first 
above written. 
 
ASSIGNOR:      ASSIGNEE: 
COVENANT HEALTH HOBBS  Stag Amazon, LLC 
 
By:  ________________________  By:  ________________________ 
 
Name: ________________________  Name: Steven Willis    
 
Title:  ________________________  Title:        
 
Address:      Address: 6905 82nd St. Suite 300  
 
Phone:       Email:  steven@rebuscap.com  
 
 
THE CITY OF HOBBS    
                                           
  
                                                        
Sam D. Cobb, Mayor                                               
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
                                                                                                                           
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk    Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon  

Deputy City Attorney 
 

mailto:steven@rebuscap.com


 

 

EXHIBIT 3 
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE 

 
This Estoppel Certificate ("Certificate") is made as of the ___ day of ____________, 2025 (the 
“Effective Date”), by the City of Hobbs, a New Mexico municipal corporation (“Ground Lessor”), 
in favor of Stag Amazon, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Assignee”), and any current 
or prospective purchaser, assignee, lender, or title company in connection with the transaction 
described below. 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
A. Ground Lessor is the owner of the land commonly known as 6.83 acres of land located in 
the Hobbs Industrial Airpark, particularly described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto (“Lease 
Boundary Description”) and the owner of the Ground Lessor’s interest in the ground lease 
identified in Recital B below (“Ground Lease”). 
 
B. Reference is hereby made to that certain Ground Lease dated December 4, 2006, between 
Ground Lessor and Covenant Health Hobbs (“Ground Lessee”), as amended by the First 
Amendment dated September 16, 2024 (collectively, the “Ground Lease”). 
C. Ground Lessee has entered into an agreement to assign all leasehold interests and the 
option to purchase to Stag Amazon, LLC, and Ground Lessor consents to the assignment (the 
“Transaction”). 
NOW THEREFORE, Ground Lessor hereby certifies and represents as follows, to the best of 
Ground Lessor’s knowledge as of the Effective Date: 
1. Consent; Lease Effective. Ground Lessor consents to the Transaction. The Ground Lease has 

been duly executed and delivered by the parties thereto and, subject to the terms and conditions 
thereof, is in full force and effect. The obligations of Ground Lessee thereunder are valid and 
binding, and there have been no modifications or additions to the Ground Lease, written or oral, 
other than the First Amendment dated September 16, 2024. Ground Lessee is in possession of the 
premises demised under the Ground Lease. 
 

2. No Default. (a) To the best of Ground Lessor’s knowledge, there exists no breach, default, or 
condition which, with the giving of notice or passage of time or both, would constitute a default by 
Ground Lessee or Ground Lessor. (b) Neither Ground Lessor nor Ground Lessee has any existing 
claims, defenses, or offsets against rental due or to become due. 
 

3. Entire Agreement. The Ground Lease constitutes the entire agreement between Ground Lessor 
and Ground Lessee with respect to the Property. Ground Lessee claims no rights other than as set 
forth in the Ground Lease. 

 
4. Minimum Rent. The annual minimum rent under the Lease is $1,000.00 for the first year (during 

building improvements), $44,627.22 for the second year, and shall increase by 3% annually 
thereafter, due on December 15th of each year. 
 

5. Commencement Date. The term of the Ground Lease commenced on December 4, 2006. 
 

6. Expiration Date. The term of the Ground Lease will expire on December 15, 2081. 
 



 

 

7. No Deposits or Prepaid Rent. No deposits or prepayments of rent have been made. 
 

8. No Other Assignment. Ground Lessee has received no notice, and is not aware of, any other 
assignment of Ground Lessor’s interest. 
 

9. Consent to Transaction. Ground Lessor hereby consents to the Transaction. 
 

10. Use and Compliance. The premises are used as a commercial warehouse by Amazon, consistent 
with the Ground Lease and City regulations. All required permits for the use have been obtained. 
 

11. Purchase Option or Refusal Rights. The Ground Lease includes an option to purchase at market 
value. Ground Lessor consents to assignment of the option to Stag Amazon, LLC. 
 

12. Reliance and Binding Effect. This Certificate may be relied upon by Assignee, successors, 
lenders, and title companies. This Certificate does not modify the Ground Lease. In the event of 
conflict, the Ground Lease controls. 
 

13. Release of Assignor. Upon execution of the assignment, Ground Lessor acknowledges that 
Covenant Health Hobbs shall be released from obligations arising after the assignment, but remains 
responsible for any prior defaults. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Ground Lessor has executed this Agreement this __________ 
day of __________, 20___. 

        GROUND LESSOR: 
CITY OF HOBBS 

A New Mexico municipal corporation 
 

    _____________________________ 
     Sam D. Cobb, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Medjine Desrosiers-Douyon, Deputy City Attorney 
 
 



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BA

Executive Director - RESO

Michael Siwek

Docusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2

President & CEO

Jennifer Grassham



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2



Docusign Envelope ID: 2D7A647C-3C9C-4A3B-B102-F0BB84E894BADocusign Envelope ID: FCE558E9-8C8A-4489-84F8-454217E959F2




	 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	1. Minutes of the September 2, 2025, Regular Commissi
	Staff Summary Form
	September 2, 2025 - Minutes


	 PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS OF MERIT
	2. Proclamation Proclaiming September 16, 2025, as "N
	National IT Professionals Day

	3. Proclamation Proclaiming September 26, 2025, as "H
	HR Proclamation

	4. Recognition of City Employees - Milestone Service 
	September Milestones 2025


	 PUBLIC COMMENTS
	 CONSENT AGENDA
	5. Resolution No. 7674  - Authorizing the Mayor to Ex
	Staff Summary Form
	Hobbs- LP20037 Grant Agreement 2- Reso
	LP20037 City of Hobbs_2nd amendment


	 DISCUSSION
	 ACTION ITEMS
	6. PUBLIC HEARING:  Resolution No. 7675 - Regarding t
	Staff Summary Form
	Resolution - Kui Liu LLC dba Kobe Japanese Steakhouse
	Application Packet - Kobe Japanese Steakhouse
	Affidavit of Publication - Kobe Japanese Steakhouse
	Kobe Japanese Steakhouse Buffer Map for 1015 W Joe Harvey Blvd Rev0 (8-20-25)

	7. Resolution No. 7676 - Authorizing the City of Hobb
	Staff Summary Form
	Resolution - Hobbs Express Grant Application 26-27
	FY 26-27 Grant Summary
	Letters of Support

	8. Consideration of Award of Bid 1621-25; Rehabilitat
	Staff Summary Form
	bid 1621-25 HIAP
	Bid Tabulation - HIAP Concrete Tank
	Viking Industrial Painting LLC
	TMI Coatings LLC

	9. Consideration of Award of Bid 1622-25; Rehabilitat
	Staff Summary Form
	bid 1622-25 JEFFERSON TANK
	Bid Tabulation - Jefferson Tank
	Viking Industrial Painting LLC Jefferson
	TMI Coatings LLC Jefferson

	10. Resolution No. 7677 - Authorizing the Expenditure 
	Staff Summary Form
	RESOLUTION -Taylor elementary School park (04.2.25)
	MOA City and Schools for Taylor Elementary School playgroup equipment and repair
	02.26.25 COMMISSION SPECIAL PROJECT  REQ
	PROPOSAL
	TAYLOR SCHOOL PARK_11X17-01

	11. Resolution No. 7678 - Memorandum of Understanding 
	Staff Summary Form
	HHS LEA RESOLUTION-1
	MOU_07.07.25 with LEA

	12. FINAL ADOPTION:  Ordinance No. 1164 - Authorizing 
	Staff Summary Form
	ORDINANCE No. COVENANT - AMAZON PURCHASE 08-07-25
	REPA - COVENANT - STAG - Final with edits 8-7-25
	EXHIBIT 1 - Leased Boundary Description
	EXHIBIT 2 - ASSIGNMENT OF OPTION TO PURCHASE - 8-7-25
	EXHIBIT 3 - Estoppel
	EXHIBIT 4 - Ord No. 1161 - First Amendment and original ground lease
	Affidavit of Publication- Stag Amazon LLC


	 COMMENTS BY CITY COMMISSIONERS, CITY MANAGER
	13. Next Meeting Dates:City Commission Regular Meeting

	 ADJOURNMENT

		2024-09-19T08:37:38-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




